
Vestavia Hills
City Council Agenda 

June 10, 2013 
5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Joe Comer, Horizon Church 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Presentations: 

a. Joan Wright, Executive Director, Childcare Resources 
b. Jim Crego, Controller/Associate Director, Jefferson-Blount-St. Clair Mental 

Health Authority 
9. Approval Of Minutes – May 16, 2013 (Meeting With The Mayor) And May 29, 2013 

(Regular Meeting)

Old Business

10. Resolution Number 4454 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement For Republication Of The City’s Municipal Code  
(public hearing)

11. Ordinance Number 2448 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Sale Of Real 
Estate More Particularly Described As A Portion Of Vacated Sicard Hollow Right-Of-
Way As Recorded In Book 200808, Page 413, Jefferson County  (public hearing)

New Business 

12. Resolution Number 4456 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute and Deliver An Agreement For Exclusive Real Estate Listing Of 17 +/- Acres at 
Patchwork Farms 



New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

13. Resolution Number 4457 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Execute And Deliver An 
Agreement For A New City Manager  (Public Hearing)

14. Resolution Number 4460 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Accept A Proposal From Terracon For Phase I Environmental Site Assessment For The 
Proposed New City Hall (Public Hearing)

15. Resolution Number 4461 – Declaring Certain Drainage/Street Repairs As An Emergency 
And Authorizing The Repair Of Said Drainage/Street Improvements    (Public Hearing)

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

16. Resolution Number 4458 - Accepting A Bid For The Purchase And Installation Of 
Bleachers For The Parks And Recreation Department Of The City Of Vestavia Hills  
(Public Hearing)

17. Resolution Number 4459 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement With The Regional Planning Commission Of Greater 
Birmingham For Development Of A Form-Based Zoning Classification For The City Of 
Vestavia Hills (Public Hearing)

18. Citizens Comments  
19. Executive Session 
20. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

WORK SESSION 

MAY 16, 2013 

 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in work session on this date at 4:30 PM 
following posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The Mayor called the 
meeting to order and the Clerk checked the roll with the following: 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Alberto C. Zaragoza, Mayor* 
      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem  
      George Pierce 
      Jim Sharp 

MEMBERS ABSENT:   John Henley  

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jim St. John, Interim City Manager 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

Mike Roy, Building Inspector 
      Fred Baughman, Economic Dev. Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
       *arrived at 5:45 PM 

 Mr. Ammons opened the meeting and introduced Mike Roy of the Building 
Safety and Inspections Department who presented a synopsis of the City’s sign ordinance 
and the procedure for sign maintenance and construction.  He answered questions from 
the Council regarding signage in the City. 

 Andrew Edwards, the City’s representative on the MAXX Board, gave an update 
on the Board’s progress, the new director of the Board, etc.  He answered questions from 
the Council regarding upcoming proposals for the bus system within the City. 

 Fred Baughman and K. C. Pang discussed the prospect of the City entering into 
the “Sister City” program.  He explained the scope of the program and steps to enter into 
it, including a student exchange and a teacher exchange. 

 Jim Sharp left the meeting at 5:30 PM. 

 Mr. Pierce gave a drug task force update at the City schools. 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2

 The Mayor indicated that Capital Med-Vest is supposed to close on the 7.5 acres 
at Patchwork and construct a 3-story office building next to the Northport property and 
that an extension would be again requested at the next meeting. 

 There being no further discussion, work session adjourned at 6:00 PM. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
May 29, 2013, 

Page 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES

MAY 29, 2013 

 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following:

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

      George Pierce  
      John Henley 
      Jim Sharp 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jim St. John, Interim City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Dep. Finance Director 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Deputy Police Chief 
      Fred Baughman, Economic Dev. Director 

 Invocation was given by Steve Ammons, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 

� The Mayor stated that the new café at the Library in the Forest is set to open 
tomorrow at 5:30. 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

� Mr. St. John congratulated John Penrose for being selected as the Optimist Club 
“Officer of the Year” for 2013. 

� The Library is set to kick off the Summer Reading Program which they anticipate 
will draw approximately 500 children. 

� The Fire Department will have two retirements coming up, Wade Brown and 
Randy Rutledge. 



City Council Minutes 
May 29, 2013, 

Page 2

� Mr. St. John indicated that he and Mr. Boone have met with Alabama Power to 
discuss the method of tree trimming in the City.  He stated that Alabama Power 
has provided some information that will be posted on the website for resident 
information along with a contact phone number if they experience a problem. 

� Alagasco has suspended some of their repairs within the streets until schools close 
after causing a long back-up during carpool.  They reported they will return to 
finish the repairs after school closes for the summer. 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 

� No Reports. 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 Melvin Turner III, Finance Director, presented the financial reports for month 
ending April 2013.  He read and explained the balances. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 The minutes of the May 13, 2013 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the May 13, 2013 
(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Ammons.  Roll Call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

OLD BUSINESS  

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2447

Ordinance Number 2447 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Purchase 
Of Real Estate Situated At 1105 Mayland Lane (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to adopt Ordinance Number 2447 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 Mr. St. John stated that this Ordinance authorizes the purchase of 2.6 +/- acres of 
property which will be used to complement the property being purchased for location of a 
new City Hall.  He stated that the terms of the agreement set forth a condition that the 



City Council Minutes 
May 29, 2013, 

Page 3

City will only close on this property if it closes on the other property.  The closings will 
be done at the same time. 

 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the contract and finds no problems with it. 

 Mr. Henley recused himself from the vote. 

 Mr. Ammons asked if the property would have to be rezoned. 

 Ms. Leavings stated that the property is now zoned B-2 and a public facility is 
allowed within that zoning classification. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 

MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

NEW BUSINESS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4451

Resolution Number 4451 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Protective Clothing 
For The Fire Department 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4451 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 Mr. St. John stated that this Resolution accepts a 3-year bid for protective clothing 
for the Fire Department.  He explained the purpose of the clothing and the reason the 
recommendation for acceptance is not going to the lowest bidder who gave an exception 
to a certain type of detergent to be used on these uniforms and, once the detergent is 
added, the bid is no longer the lowest.  Therefore, the recommendation is for the next 
lowest bid. 

MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
May 29, 2013, 

Page 4

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4452

Resolution Number 4452 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Execute An Agreement For Security Services For Municipal Court 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4452 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 Ms. Leavings explained that the funding for security for the City’s Municipal 
Court was approved at a previous meeting.  This Resolution authorizes the City to enter 
into an agreement to retain the guards from Security Engineers.  Mr. Boone has reviewed 
the agreement and offered an amendment which has been forwarded to the company. 

MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion for unanimous consent for the 
immediate consideration and action on Resolution Number 4453. 

MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 
of Resolution Number 4453 was by Mr. Ammons.  Second was by Mr. 
Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4453

Resolution Number 4453 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase A 
LiveScan System For The City Of Vestavia Hills Police Department  (public
hearing)

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4453 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Sharp. 

 Chief Rary stated that the City was awarded a grant to pay for this system in full; 
however, the City must first purchase the system and the grant will reimburse the City.  
He stated that the City’s current system has far outlived its usefulness and this new 
system is state-of-the-art and will take the entire hand print and submit it to the proper 
entities for fingerprinting. 



City Council Minutes 
May 29, 2013, 

Page 5

 The Mayor stated that this equipment will be purchased through the state bid. 

 Chief Rary agreed. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 

MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)

 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting of June 
10, 2013 at 5 PM. 

� Resolution Number 4454 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Execute And Deliver An Agreement For Republication Of The 
City’s Municipal Code (public hearing)

� Ordinance Number 2448 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Sale Of 
Real Estate More Particularly Described As A Portion Of Vacated Sicard Hollow 
Right-Of-Way As Recorded In Book 200808, Page 413, Jefferson County  
(public hearing)

CITIZENS COMMENTS 

No one was present to address the Council. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 The Mayor indicated that the Council has a need to enter into Executive Session 
in order to discuss the following:  (1) purchase/sale of property; (2) pending litigation; 
and (3) good name and character of an individual. 

 Mr. Boone concurred that was sufficient reason and indicated that Ben Goldman 
and Mark Waggoner of Hand Arendall LLP were present in regard to the litigation 
discussion.



City Council Minutes 
May 29, 2013, 

Page 6

 The Mayor estimated that the Executive Session would last approximately 90 
minutes and stated that there would be business conducted after the session.   He opened 
the floor for a motion for the Executive Session. 

MOTION Motion to move into an executive session for an estimated 90 minutes 
with further business to be conducted after the meeting was by Mr. Sharp 
and second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 The Council exited the Chamber and entered into Executive Session at 5:40 PM.  
At 7:45, they re-entered the Chamber and the Mayor called the meeting back to order. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion for unanimous consent for the 
immediate consideration and action on Resolution Number 4455. 

MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 
of Resolution Number 4455 was by Mr. Ammons.  Second was by Mr. 
Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4455

Resolution Number 4455 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Settle Jefferson 
County Circuit Court Case Number CV-2012-01005 Entitled City Of 
Vestavia Hills V. Maddox Enterprises LP Et Al 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4455 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Sharp. 

 Mr. St. John stated that this Resolution will settle a lawsuit regarding the motel on 
Montgomery Highway. 

 Mr. Boone recommended an amendment to the Resolution to attach the terms of 
the settlement. 

MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 4455 in order to attach and 
incorporate the terms of the settlement into the Resolution was by Mr. 
Ammons.  Mr. Henley seconded the agreement.  Roll call vote, as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
May 29, 2013, 

Page 7

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 

MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion for unanimous consent for the 
immediate consideration and action on Ordinance Number 2433-A. 

MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 
of Ordinance Number 2433-A was by Mr. Pierce.  Second was by Mr. 
Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2433-A

Ordinance Number 2433-A – Amending Ordinance 2433 For Extension Of A 
Purchase/Sale Agreement For Real Estate 

MOTION Motion to adopt Ordinance Number 2433-A was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 Mr. St. John stated that this Ordinance allows Capital Med-Vest extra time to 
complete due diligence and purchase property in Patchwork. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 

MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
May 29, 2013, 

Page 8

MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce.  Meeting adjourned at 7:50 PM. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4454 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT FOR 
REPUBLICATION OF THE CITY’S MUNICIPAL CODE 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement 

with Municipal Code Corporation (“Municode”) for republication of the City’s Code and 

Zoning Ordinance in an amount not to exceed $14,990.   

2. A copy of said agreement is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 

4454 as if written fully therein; and 

3. The expense of the above-described agreement shall be spread over two fiscal years 

beginning with a $7,000 deposit to be remitted upon execution of the agreement and the 

remainder to be due and payable following completion and/or after October 1, 2013; and  

4. This Resolution Number 4454 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10th day of June, 2013. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
DATE: May 23, 2013 

TO:  Jim St. John, Interim City Manager 

FROM: Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

RE:  Republication of City Code and Zoning Ordinance 

 Attached you will find a copy of a proposed agreement with Municipal Code Corporation 
(“Municode”) for republication of the City’s code of ordinances.  This agreement proposes two 
options:  (1) republication of the City’s Code; and (2) republication of the City’s Code and 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 I am requesting this to be placed on the City Council agenda as a first read on 
Wednesday, May 29, 2013 for Option 2 which includes the City’s Zoning Code.  The Zoning 
Code has never been included in the City’s Code and this makes it difficult for the general public 
to locate the Code in order to answer questions concerning zoning and permitted uses of 
property.  As this Department develops a GIS zoning map, the intent is to place this zoning map 
online to provide complete access to zoning information.  The inclusion of the Zoning Code is an 
additional $4,750 expense but I believe it will make it easier for the general public to locate and 
access this information. 

 The agreement allows the City to spread the $14,990 cost over 2 fiscal years.  The $7,000 
required deposit is within the approved budget for the current fiscal year and the remainder will 
need to be committed by the City Council for the next fiscal year.  

 Republication was last completed in 2008 and currently there are 78 Ordinances held in 
NOW which need to be incorporated into the City’s Code.  The expense of holding so many 
Ordinances within the NOW internet based storage currently will cost the City approximately 
$6,000 this next year to continue to hold these ordinances.  This will clear that NOW expense 
and bring the City’s Code back up to date.

 Please let me know if you need any other information. 

Reply



Exhibit A





















Ordinance Number 2448 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER_2448 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SALE 
OF REAL ESTATE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS A 
PORTION OF VACATED SICARD HOLLOW RIGHT-OF-WAY 
AS RECORDED IN BOOK 200808, PAGE 413, JEFFERSON 
COUNTY.

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2448 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 10th day of June, 2013. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975, declares municipalities 

corporate and gives them the power to contract and be contracted with; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-43-56, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council shall have the management and control of the finances and all of the property, 

real and personal, belonging to the City; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council may, by ordinance to be entered in its minutes, direct the disposal of any real 

property not needed for public or municipal purposes and direct the mayor to make title 

thereto, and a conveyance made by the mayor in accordance with such ordinance invests 

the grantee with the title of the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-43A-28, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the city 

manager shall be the head of the administrative branch of the government of the City of 

Vestavia Hills and shall be responsible to the City Council for the proper administration 

of all municipal affairs; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-43A-48, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that all contracts 

for the City of Vestavia Hills shall be made and approved by ordinance and signed in the 

name of the City of Vestavia Hills by the mayor and countersigned by the city manager; 

and

WHEREAS, Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that if an 

ordinance is published by posting, then in such event said ordinance shall take effect five 

days thereafter; and 



Ordinance Number 2448 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) is the owner of real 

property situated in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, which said 

real estate shall hereinafter be referred to as the “subject property” and is more 

particularly described as follows: 

A part of the right of way of Sicard Hollow Road vacated by Book LR 
200808 Pg 413, as recorded in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, 
Alabama.  Being a part of the vacated right to way lying in the NE ¼ of 
the NE ¼ of Section 18 Township 18 South, Range 1 West and being 
more particularly described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in the NE ¼ of Section 18, Township 18 South, 
Range 1, West Jefferson County Alabama being more particularly 
described as follows: 

Commence at the NE corner of said Section 18 and run south 00 degrees 
42 minutes 50 seconds East along the east line thereof for a distance of 
747.23 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING of said parcel, said point also 
being on a curve turning to the left, said curve having a radius of 612.96 
feet, a central angle of 11 degrees 13 minutes 14 seconds, a chord bearing 
of South 51 degrees 57 minutes 12 seconds West, and a chord length of 
119.85 feet; thence run in a Southwesterly direction along said arc for a 
distance of 120.04 feet; thence run South 46 degrees 19 minutes 48 
seconds West for a distance of 208.07 feet to the point of beginning of a 
curve to the right having a radius of 278.31 feet, a central angle of 43 
degrees 19 minutes 40 seconds, a chord bearing of South 67 degrees 59 
minutes 19 seconds West, and a chord length of 205.48 feet; thence run in 
a Southwesterly direction along the arc of said curve for a distance of 
210.46 feet; thence run South 89 degrees 38 minutes 30 seconds West for 
a distance of 74.56 feet to a point on a curve turning to the left having a 
radius of 278.73 feet, a central angle of 37 degrees 55 minutes 57 seconds, 
a chord bearing of South 70 degrees 40 minutes 57 seconds West, and a 
chord length of 181.18 feet; thence run in a Southwesterly direction along 
the arc of said curve for a distance of 184.53 feet; thence run North 89 
degrees 49 minutes 08 seconds East for a distance of 317.36 feet to the 
currently existing Northeasterly right of way of Sicard Hollow Road; 
thence run North 47 degrees 22 minutes 58 seconds East along said right 
of way for a distance of 500 feet, more or less, to the Easterly line of said 
Section 18; thence turn left and run North 00 degrees 42 minutes 50 
seconds West along said Easterly line of Section 18 to the point of 
beginning and end of this parcel; and 

WHEREAS, Jordy Henson, Managing Member of HCI Holdings LLC, an 

Alabama limited liability corporation, has requested that the City declare said property as 



Ordinance Number 2448 
Page 3 

surplus and offer for sale to Harris Doyle Homes, Inc., for development of a subdivision; 

and

WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that it is willing to accept the offer by 

Harris Doyle Homes, Inc.; for an amount equivalent to $2,400 with the purchaser paying 

all costs associated with closing of said property; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and 

determines that the subject property is not needed for municipal or public purposes; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The subject property is found and determined to not be needed for public 

or municipal purposes by the City of Vestavia Hills and is hereby declared as surplus 

property all in accordance with the requirements of Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 

1975.

 2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute and deliver all documents required to close said sale for and on behalf of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3. A copy of said real estate closing documents, along with said payment, 

will be submitted upon closing and kept on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama for inspection by members of the general public. 

 4. Upon approval, adoption and enactment of this Ordinance Number 2448 

the Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to take any and all legal 

action necessary to close the sale of the subject property all in accordance with the terms, 

provisions and conditions previously described. 

 5. This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975.

6. If any part, section or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this Ordinance which shall continue in full force 

and effect notwithstanding such holding. 



Ordinance Number 2448 
Page 4 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 10th day of June, 

2013.

      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

      By_________________________________ 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

_________________________________
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION:

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2448 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 10th day of June, 2013 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2013. 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

















RESOLUTION NUMBER 4456 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT FOR EXCLUSIVE 
REAL ESTATE LISTING OF 17 +/- ACRES AT PATCHWORK FARMS 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an exclusive 

real estate listing for 17 +/- acres at Patchwork Farms; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is attached to this Resolution Number 4456 and incorporated as 

though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4456 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10th day of June, 2013. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 

EXCLUSIVE LISTING AGREEMENT 

THIS EXCLUSIVE LISTING AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this          day 
 of                            , 20___, by and between Chase Commercial Realty, Inc., an Alabama 
Corporation, having a mailing address at 3000 Riverchase Galleria Suite 760 Birmingham, Alabama 
35244 attention Mr. Taylor Glaze (hereinafter referred to as "Broker") and City of Vestavia Hills,
having a mailing address at 513 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, AL 35216, Attention 
Mayor Alberto C. “Butch” Zaragoza and Interim City Manager Jim St. John (hereinafter 
referred to as "Owner"). 

 The terms of this Agreement are as follows: 

            1.     EMPLOYMENT OF BROKER.  In consideration of services to be rendered by 
Broker, Owner employs Broker as an exclusive agent to procure the sale of the property at    
Patchwork Farms,  in the City of Vestavia Hills, County of Jefferson, State of Alabama, containing 
approximately   17.11  acres of land more particularly described on Schedule "A" attached hereto 
and made a part hereof by reference, with zoning of PB-CU or General Business.  Property will need 
to be re-zoned to commercial use per Owner’s re-zoning regulations.  Owner shall determine the 
terms and conditions for the sale of the property, and Broker is authorized to offer for sale at a 
mutually agreed upon price.   

 2. TERM.  This Agreement shall continue in force for a period of 6 months, beginning 
on the        day of June,  2013, and ending on the  ____   day of    November, 2013 .  At the 
expiration of the term hereof, Broker's rights hereunder as to parties with whom Broker may have 
been negotiating at the time of expiration shall continue for a period of one hundred twenty (120) 
days following the expiration and Broker shall be entitled to compensation for the same. 

3. COMPENSATION.  As compensation for Broker's services and efforts to procure 
a sale, Owner agrees to pay Broker FIVE percent (5%) of the sales price (“Sales Commission”).
All Sales Commission is payable at closing.   

    Broker's commission shall not be diminished in the event that the Owner defaults under the 
contract agreement or fails to exercise default remedies provided within the contract or by law.  In 
the event the Purchaser defaults under the contract and the earnest money is taken as liquidated 
damages, the Owner agrees to split the earnest money 50/50 with Broker; provided, however, that 
the amount paid to Broker shall not exceed the total amount of Broker’s commission. 

4. ADVERTISING.  Broker shall be responsible for the cost of advertising specified under 
this agreement.  Broker agrees to place a sign on the premises indicating that the property is 
"Available".  Broker shall obtain the prior approval of Owner for all promotions and advertisements 
it desires to use in marketing the property. 

Exhibit A



Exclusive Listing Agreement 
Chase Commercial Realty, Inc. 

5. RESPONSIBILITIES OF BROKER.

A. Broker agrees to act diligently and to use his best efforts to produce a closing and sale of the 
property.

B. Broker shall faithfully observe and comply with the real estate laws, rules and regulations of 
the State of Alabama.  In the event Broker is found guilty of violating any real estate law, or for any 
reason loses its real estate license, Owner shall be entitled to immediately terminate this Agreement. 

C. Representations made by the Broker with respect to the listed property shall not vary from 
the information provided Broker by Owner as specified in Schedule "A".  Broker shall indemnify 
Owner against any damages or liabilities resulting from Broker's failure to comply with this 
provision.

D. Broker shall use only such forms, information sheets, brochures, or other informational 
material as provided to Broker by Owner at Owner's expense, or brochures/presentations prepared 
by the Broker with the Owners approval at the Brokers expense. 

 6.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  All of the terms and provisions of this Agreement 
shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

 7.  ATTORNEY'S FEES.  Should either party to this Agreement institute litigation against 
the other for relief of any type arising out of or pertaining to this Agreement, the prevailing party in 
such litigation shall entitled to recover all costs incurred, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorney's fees, such additional costs as a Court may determine to be fair and proper in the 
circumstances. 

8.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the 
parties, and shall not be modified except by document in writing signed by both parties. This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Laws of the State of 
Alabama. 

9. SINGLE BROKER/AGENT.  Broker shall serve as a single Broker/Agent for the Seller. 

10. USE OF PROPERTY.  Anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary 
notwithstanding, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as Owner, lists said property for sale with the 
expectation that the property will be sold and closed to a legal entity that will operate a commercial 
retail business that will generate sales tax, ad valorem tax and business license fee taxes for the City. 



Exclusive Listing Agreement 
Chase Commercial Realty, Inc. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and 
year first above written. 

ATTESTED:________________________ By:______________________________
          Mayor – City of Vestavia Hills 

Date:______________________________ Its:_______                                                  

ATTESTED:________________________ By:______________________________
          City Manager – City of Vestavia Hills 

Date:______________________________ Its:_______                                                  

ATTESTED:________________________ By:______________________________
          Chase Commercial Realty, Inc. 

Date:______________________________ Its:_______                                                  

          



SCHEDULE A 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4457 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND 
DELIVER AN EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT FOR A CITY MANAGER 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute and deliver an employment contract with Mr. 

Jeffrey D. Downes as City Manager; and 

2. A copy of said contract is attached to this Resolution Number 4457 marked as “Exhibit 

A” and is incorporated by reference as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4457 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10th day of June, 2013. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A



























RESOLUTION NUMBER 4460 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO ACCEPT A PROPOSAL FROM TERRACON FOR PHASE I 
ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT FOR THE PROPOSED NEW 
CITY HALL 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to accept a proposal from Terracon 

for Phase I – Environmental Site Assessment for the properties deemed the site of the 

new proposed City Hall in an amount not to exceed $2,500; and 

2. A copy of said proposal is attached to this Resolution Number 4460 marked as “Exhibit 

A” and incorporated as though written fully therein; and 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10th day of June, 2013. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



  

 

Terracon Consultants, Inc.     110 12th St. North      Birmingham, AL 35203 
P  205-942-1289     F  205-443-5302     terracon.com 

May 31, 2013  
 
Mr. Jim St. John, Interim City Manager 
City of Vestavia Hills, AL 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL  35216 
 
Telephone: 205-978-0100 
Facsimile: 205-978-0189 
E-mail: st.john@ci.vestaviahills.al.us 
 
 
RE: Proposal for Phase I Environmental Site Assessment  
 1034 Montgomery Highway and 1105 Mayland Lane 
 Vestavia Hills, AL    
 Terracon Proposal No. PE1130348R 
 
 
Dear Mr. St. John: 
 
Terracon Consultants, Inc. (Terracon) appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to City 
of Vestavia Hills, AL (client) to conduct a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of the 
above-referenced site. 

1.0 PROJECT INFORMATION 

We understand the site comprises two parcels:  Lot 2A, approximately 1.79 acres located at 1034 
Montgomery Highway, and an additional, contiguous 2.5 acre parcel at 1105 Mayland Lane, 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama. The properties contain a furniture sales building and a former restaurant 
building. If this is not accurate, or if you have additional useful information, please inform us as 
soon as possible. 

2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

2.1. Base Phase I ESA Services 

The ESA will be performed consistent with the procedures included in ASTM E 1527-05, 
Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments:  Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment Process. The purpose of this ESA is to assist the client in developing information to 
identify recognized environmental conditions (RECs - as defined below) in connection with the 
site as reflected by the scope of this proposal. If modifications to the scope of services are 
required, please contact us to discuss proposal revisions. 



Proposal for Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
City of Vestavia Hills, AL ■ Vestavia Hills, AL 
May 31, 2013 ■ Terracon Proposal No. PE1130348R 
 
 

Responsive � Resourceful � Reliable  2 

 
 
Physical Setting 
The physical setting for the site will be described based on a review of the applicable USGS 
topographic quadrangle map, USDA soil survey, and selected geologic reference information. 
 
Historical Use Information 
 
A review of selected historical sources, where reasonably ascertainable and readily available, 
will be conducted in an attempt to document obvious past land use of the site and adjoining 
properties back to 1940 or when the site was initially developed, whichever is earlier. The 
following selected references, depending on applicability and likely usefulness, will be reviewed 
for the site. 
 

� Historical topographic maps 

� Aerial photographs (approximate 10 to 15 year intervals) 

� City directories (approximate 5 year intervals) 

� Fire (Sanborn) insurance maps 

� Property tax file information 

� Site title search information, if provided by client  

� Environmental liens, if provided by client  

� Building department records 

� Zoning records 

� Prior environmental reports, permits and registrations; or geotechnical reports, if  
 provided by the client 

 
Pursuant to ASTM E 1527-05, the client should engage a title company or title professional to 
undertake a review of reasonably ascertainable recorded land title records and lien records for 
environmental liens currently recorded against or relating to the site. If the client is unable to 
provide land title records or environmental lien information, an abstract firm may be contracted 
by Terracon to develop a chain of title from a review of land title records for an additional fee. 
Documentation of environmental liens, if recorded, will be provided with the chain of title. Note, 
however, unless specifically requested within three days of project commencement, Terracon 
will rely on the client to provide land title records. If land title records or environmental lien 
information are not provided for review in a timely manner, Terracon may conclude that 
the absence of records represents a significant data gap, which must be documented in 
the final report. 



Proposal for Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
City of Vestavia Hills, AL ■ Vestavia Hills, AL 
May 31, 2013 ■ Terracon Proposal No. PE1130348R 
 
 

Responsive � Resourceful � Reliable  3 

 
The client and the current owner or their representative will be interviewed to provide 
information regarding past uses of the site and information pertaining to the use of hazardous 
substances and petroleum products on the site. Additionally, a reasonable attempt will be made 
to interview past owners, operators, and occupants of the site to the extent that they are 
identified within the scope of the ESA and are likely to have material information that is not 
duplicative of information already obtained through the assessment process. 
 
REC Definition 
 
Recognized Environmental Conditions are defined by ASTM E 1527-05 as “the presence or 
likely presence of any hazardous substances or petroleum products on a property under 
conditions that indicate an existing release, a past release, or a material threat of release of any 
hazardous substances or petroleum products into structures on the property or into the ground, 
groundwater, or surface water of the property. The term includes hazardous substances or 
petroleum products even under conditions of compliance with laws. The term is not intended to 
include de minimis conditions that generally do not present a material risk of harm to the public 
health or the environment and that generally would not be the subject of an enforcement action 
if brought to the attention of appropriate governmental agencies.” 
 
Regulatory Records Review 
 
Consistent with ASTM E 1527-05, outlined below are the following federal, state, and tribal 
databases, where applicable are typically reviewed for indications of RECs, and the 
approximate minimum search distance of the review from the nearest property boundary. 
Evaluating identified regulatory facilities for potential vapor intrusion conditions is outside the 
scope of this proposal. A database firm will be subcontracted to access governmental records 
used in this portion of the assessment. Additional federal, state, and local databases may be 
reviewed if provided by the database firm. Determining the location of unmapped facilities is 
beyond the scope of this assessment. 
 

Governmental Records Search Distance 
Federal NPL Site List 1.0 mile 
Federal NPL (Delisted) Site List 0.5 mile 
Federal CERCLIS Site List 0.5 mile 
Federal CERCLIS NFRAP Site List 0.5 mile 
Federal RCRA Corrective Actions (CORRACTS) TSD Facilities List 1.0 mile 
Federal RCRA Non-CORRACTS TSD Facilities List 0.5 mile 
Federal RCRA Generators List Site and Adjoining 
Federal Institutional Control/Engineering Control Registries Site Only 
Federal ERNS List Site Only 
State and Tribal-Equivalent NPL Site Lists 1.0 mile 



Proposal for Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
City of Vestavia Hills, AL ■ Vestavia Hills, AL 
May 31, 2013 ■ Terracon Proposal No. PE1130348R 
 
 

Responsive � Resourceful � Reliable  4 

Governmental Records Search Distance 
State and Tribal-Equivalent CERCLIS Lists 0.5 mile 
State and Tribal Landfill and/or Solid Waste Disposal Site Lists  0.5 mile 
State and Tribal Leaking UST Lists 0.5 mile 
State and Tribal Registered UST Lists Site and Adjoining 
State and Tribal Institutional Control/Engineering Control Registries Site Only 
State and Tribal VCP Site Lists 0.5 mile 
State and Tribal Brownfield Site Lists 0.5 mile 

Tribal databases will only be evaluated if the site is located in an area where a recognized tribe has 
jurisdiction for environmental affairs. 
  
In addition to the database review and if customary practice for the site location, an attempt will 
be made to review reasonably ascertainable and useful local lists or records such as Brownfield 
sites, landfill/solid waste disposal sites, registered storage tanks, land records, emergency 
release reports, and contaminated public wells. A reasonable attempt will also be made to 
interview at least one staff member of any one of the following types of local government 
agencies: fire department, health agency, planning department, building department, or 
environmental department. As an alternative, a written request for information may be submitted 
to the local agencies. 
 
If the results of the regulatory records review/local agency inquiry appear to warrant a review of 
applicable regulatory agency files, a cost estimate will be provided to the client for pre-approval. 
Review of regulatory files, when authorized, will be for the purpose of identifying RECs. 
Assessment of vapor intrusion conditions is outside the scope of a Phase I ESA. Please note 
that all requested files may not be available from regulatory agencies within the client’s 
requested project schedule. 
 
Site and Adjoining/Surrounding Property Reconnaissance 
 
A site reconnaissance will be conducted to identify RECs. The reconnaissance will consist of 
visual observations of the site from the site boundaries and selected interior portions of the site. 
The site reconnaissance will include, where applicable, an interview with site personnel who the 
client has identified as having knowledge of the uses and physical characteristics of the site. 
Pertinent observations from the site reconnaissance will be documented including: 
 

� Site description 

� General site operations 

� Aboveground chemical or waste storage 

� Visible underground chemical or waste storage, drainage, or collection systems 

� Electrical transformers 



Proposal for Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
City of Vestavia Hills, AL ■ Vestavia Hills, AL 
May 31, 2013 ■ Terracon Proposal No. PE1130348R 
 
 

Responsive � Resourceful � Reliable  5 

� Obvious releases of hazardous substances or petroleum products 
 
The adjoining property reconnaissance will consist of visual observations of the 
adjoining/surrounding properties from the site boundaries and accessible public right-of-ways. 
 
Report Preparation 
 
One hard copy and a PDF-formatted copy of the final report will be submitted that presents the 
results of this assessment, based upon the scope of services and limitations described herein. 
The final report will be signed by an environmental professional responsible for the Phase I 
ESA, and the report will contain an environmental professional statement as required by 40 
CFR 312.21(d). Recommendations will be developed as part of the Phase I ESA scope of 
services. Prior to final report issuance, the client may request additional copies at a charge of 
$50.00 per report copy. 
 

2.2 Additional Services Beyond Base ESA 

At the direction of the client, additional services beyond the scope of the base Phase I ESA 
have not been included. 

2.3 Additional Services Not Included 

The following services, although not specifically required by ASTM E 1527-05, may also be 
performed concurrently with ESAs and may be beneficial for the evaluation of environmental 
conditions and/or an evaluation of specific business environmental risks at the site. At your 
direction, these services have not been included as part of the scope of services for this ESA. 
Please note that this list is not all-inclusive. If you seek additional services, please contact us for 
a supplemental proposal and cost estimate. 
  

� Limited Visual Observations for Asbestos 

� Limited Asbestos Sampling 

� Asbestos Survey (prior to renovation/demolition) 

� Limited Visual Observations for Mold 

� Limited Radon Records Review 

� Limited Radon Testing  

� Limited Visual Observations for Lead-Based Paint 

� Limited Lead-Based Paint Survey 



Proposal for Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
City of Vestavia Hills, AL ■ Vestavia Hills, AL 
May 31, 2013 ■ Terracon Proposal No. PE1130348R 
 
 

Responsive � Resourceful � Reliable  6 

� Limited Lead in Drinking Water Records Review 

� Limited Lead in Drinking Water Sampling 

� Limited Wetland Review 

� Limited Threatened/Endangered Species Review 

� Limited Historic Properties/Archaeological Resources Review 

� Vapor Encroachment Screening 

� Regulatory Agency File Review 

If the site is intended for future development, Terracon can also provide proposals for 
geotechnical investigations, geologic hazards (like growth faulting), construction materials 
testing, construction draw reviews and scope and budget review services. 
 

2.4 Schedule 

Services will be initiated upon receipt of the written notice to proceed. The final report will be 
submitted fifteen (15) business days after receipt of your written notice to proceed, assuming 
site access can be obtained within five (5) days after the notice to proceed. 
 
In order to comply with the proposed schedule, please provide the following items at the time of 
notification to proceed. 
 

� A signed Agreement for Services evidencing acceptance of this scope of services 

� The completed ASTM E 1527-05 User Questionnaire, supplied as an attachment to 
this proposal 

� Right of entry to conduct the assessment, including access to building interiors 

� Notification of any restrictions or special requirements (such as confidentiality, 
scheduling, or on-site safety requirements) regarding accessing the site 

� An accurate legal description and/or a diagram of the site such as a surveyor’s plat 
map or scaled architect’s drawing (if such diagrams exist) 

� Current site owner, property manager, occupant information (including tenant list), 
and contact information for persons knowledgeable about the site history including 
current and historical use of hazardous substances and petroleum products on site 
(e.g., names, phone numbers, etc.) 

� Copies of environmental reports, permits and registrations, and geotechnical reports 
that were previously prepared for the site 



Proposal for Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
City of Vestavia Hills, AL ■ Vestavia Hills, AL 
May 31, 2013 ■ Terracon Proposal No. PE1130348R 
 
 

Responsive � Resourceful � Reliable  7 

� Information relating to known or suspect environmental conditions at the site, 
including commonly known or reasonable ascertainable information within the local 
community about the site that is material to RECs in connection with the site 

� Information about environmental liens and activity and use limitations for the site, if 
any 

� Specialized knowledge or experience that is material to RECs in connection with the 
site, if any 

� Knowledge that the purchase price of the site is significantly less than the purchase 
price of comparable properties  

� Land title records  

Please note that requested regulatory files or other information may not be provided to Terracon 
by the issuance date of the report. Consideration of information not received by the issuance 
date of the report is beyond the scope of this ESA. 

2.5 Reliance 

The ESA report will be prepared for the exclusive use and reliance of City of Vestavia Hills, AL. 
Reliance by any other party is prohibited without the written authorization of the client and 
Terracon. 
 
If the client is aware of additional parties that will require reliance on the ESA report, the names, 
addresses, and relationship of these parties should be provided for Terracon approval prior to 
the time of authorization to proceed. Terracon may grant reliance on the ESA report to those 
approved parties upon receipt of a fully executed Reliance Agreement (available upon request) 
and receipt of information requested in the Reliance Agreement. If, in the future, the client and 
Terracon consent to reliance on the ESA by a third party, Terracon may grant reliance upon 
receipt of a fully executed Reliance Agreement, requested information and receipt of an 
additional minimum fee of $250.00 per relying party. 
 
Reliance on the ESA by the client and all authorized parties will be subject to the terms, 
conditions, and limitations stated in the Agreement for Services, sections of this proposal 
incorporated therein, the Reliance Agreement, and ESA report. The limitation of liability defined 
in the Agreement for Services is the aggregate limit of Terracon’s liability to the client and all 
relying parties. 
 
Continued viability of the report is subject to ASTM E 1527-05 Sections 4.6 and 4.8. If the ESA 
will be used by a different user (third party) than the user for whom the ESA was originally 
prepared, the third party must also satisfy the user’s responsibilities in Section 6 of ASTM E 
1527-05. 



Proposal for Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
City of Vestavia Hills, AL ■ Vestavia Hills, AL 
May 31, 2013 ■ Terracon Proposal No. PE1130348R 
 
 

Responsive � Resourceful � Reliable  8 

2.6 Scope and Report Limitations 

The findings and conclusions presented in the final report will be based on the site’s current 
utilization and the information collected as discussed in this proposal.  Please note that we do 
not warrant database or third party information (such as from interviewees) or regulatory agency 
information used in the compilation of reports. 
 
Phase I ESAs, such as the one proposed for this site, are of limited scope, are noninvasive, and 
cannot eliminate the potential that hazardous, toxic, or petroleum substances are present or 
have been released at the site beyond what is identified by the limited scope of this ESA. In 
conducting the limited scope of services described herein, certain sources of information and 
public records will not be reviewed. It should be recognized that environmental concerns may be 
documented in public records that are not reviewed. This ESA does not include subsurface or 
other invasive assessments, business environmental risk evaluations, or other services not 
particularly identified and discussed herein. No ESA can wholly eliminate uncertainty regarding 
the potential for RECs. The limitations herein must be considered when the user of this report 
formulates opinions as to risks associated with the site. No warranties, express or implied, are 
intended or made. 
 
An evaluation of significant data gaps will be based on the information available at the time of 
report issuance, and an evaluation of information received after the report issuance date may 
result in an alteration of our opinions and conclusions. We have no obligation to provide 
information obtained or discovered by us after the date of the report, or to perform any 
additional services, regardless of whether the information would affect any conclusions, 
recommendations, or opinions in the report. This disclaimer specifically applies to any 
information that has not been provided by the client. 
  



Proposal for Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
City of Vestavia Hills, AL ■ Vestavia Hills, AL 
May 31, 2013 ■ Terracon Proposal No. PE1130348R 
 
 

Responsive � Resourceful � Reliable  9 

3.0 COMPENSATION 

Base Phase I ESA Services Fee 

Base Phase I ESA Services - Lump Sum 
(Includes items outlined in Section 2.1. Cost to contract an abstract firm to develop 
a chain of title or environmental lien search is not included in this fee.) 

$2,500 

Additional Services Fee 

Limited Visual Observations for Asbestos * 

Limited Asbestos Sampling * 

Asbestos Survey (prior to renovation/demolition) * 

Limited Visual Observations for Mold * 

Limited Radon Records Review * 

Limited Radon Testing  * 

Limited Visual Observations for Lead-Based Paint * 

Limited Lead-Based Paint Survey * 

Vapor Encroachment Screening * 
Regulatory Agency File Review * 

Limited Lead in Drinking Water Records Review * 

Limited Lead in Drinking Water Sampling * 

Limited Wetland Review * 

Limited Threatened/Endangered Species Review * 

Limited Historic Properties/Archaeological Resources Review * 

Additional Services - Subtotal $0 

Lump Sum Total $2,500 

* Not included in the scope of services per the client’s direction. 
 
The fee is valid for 90 days from the date of this proposal and is based on the assumption that 
all field services will be performed under safety Level D personal protective procedures and that 
only one site visit will be made by Terracon personnel. The lump sum fee is based on the 
assumptions and conditions provided at the time of this proposal. 





ASTM E 1527-05 USER QUESTIONNAIRE 
Page 1 of 3 
Proposal No: PE1130348 

 

 
 

Please return this form with the signed and completed Agreement for Services. 

In order to qualify for one of the Landowner Liability Protections (LLPs) offered by the Small 
Business Relief and Brownfields Revitalization Act of 2001, the user must respond to the 
following questions. Failure to provide this information to the environmental professional may 
result in significant data gaps, which may limit our ability to identify recognized environmental 
conditions resulting in a determination that “all appropriate inquiry” is not complete. This form 
represents a type of interview and as such, the user has an obligation to answer all questions in 
good faith, to the extent of their actual knowledge. 
 
 
Site Name:  1034 Montgomery Highway _________  Site Address: Vestavia Hills, Alabama ________________  
 
1) Are you aware of any environmental cleanup liens against the site that are filed or recorded under federal, tribal, 
state, or local law (40 CFR 312.25)?  ___No   ___Yes   If yes, please explain. 
 
 
 
2) Are you aware of any activity and use limitations (AULs), such as engineering controls, land use restrictions, or 
institutional controls that are in place at the site and/or have been filed or recorded in a registry under federal, tribal, 
state, or local law (40 CFR 312.26)?  ___No   ___Yes   If yes, please explain. 
 
 
 
3) As the user of this ESA, do you have any specialized knowledge or experience related to the site or nearby 
properties?  For example, are you involved in the same line of business as the current or former occupants of the site 
or an adjoining property so that you would have specialized knowledge of the chemicals and processes used by this 
type of business (40 CFR 312-28)?  ___No   ___Yes   If yes, please explain. 
 
 
 
4) Does the purchase price being paid for this site reasonably reflect the fair market value of the site (40 CFR 
312.29)?  ___No   ___Yes  
 
If no, have you considered whether the lower purchase price is because contamination is known or believed to be 
present at the site (40 CFR 312.29)?  ___No   ___Yes   If yes, please explain. 
 
 
 
5) Are you aware of commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information about the site that would help the 
environmental professional to identify conditions indicative of releases or threatened releases (40 CFR 312.30)?  
___No   ___Yes   If yes, please explain. 
 
 
 
6) As the user of this ESA, based on your knowledge and experience related to the site, are there any obvious 
indicators that point to the presence or likely presence of contamination at the site (40 CFR 312.31)?  ___No   
___Yes   If yes, please explain. 
 
 
 
 
 



ASTM E 1527-05 USER QUESTIONNAIRE 
Page 2 of 3 
Proposal No: PE1130348 

 

 
 

Please return this form with the signed and completed Agreement for Services. 

Request for Information and Documentation 
 
In addition to the specific questions outlined above, the user is requested to provide the following 
information and documentation, as available. ASTM requires that this information, if available, be 
provided to the environmental professional prior to the site visit. 
 
 

Item 
Supplied 

“X” 

Not Applicable, 
Not Available 

or 
Not Known 

“X” 

Item Requested 
(See Proposal) 

Contacts/Comments 
or  

Indicate Attachment 

  Point of Contact for Access Name/Phone: 

  Current Site Owner Name/Phone: 

  Current Facility Operator Name/Phone: 

  Contacts for Prior Owners Name/Phone: 

  Contacts for Prior Occupants Name/Phone: 

  Access Restrictions  

  
Notification of Special 
Requirements Regarding 
Confidentiality 

 

  
Legal Description and  
Diagram / Survey of Site 

 

  
Chain of Title with 
Grantor/Grantee Summary (back 
to 1940 or first developed use) 

 

  Reasons for Conducting ESA  

 
  



ASTM E 1527-05 USER QUESTIONNAIRE 
Page 3 of 3 
Proposal No: PE1130348 

 

 
 

Please return this form with the signed and completed Agreement for Services. 

Helpful Documents Checklist 
Pursuant to ASTM E 1527-05 § 10.8, do you know whether any of the following documents exist related to the 
subject property and, if so, whether copies can and will be provided to the environmental professional?  Check all that 
apply. 
 
 
� Environmental site assessment reports 
 
� Environmental compliance audit reports 
 
� Geotechnical studies 
 
� Reports regarding hydrogeologic conditions on the 

property or surrounding area 
 
� Registrations for above or underground storage tanks 
 
 

� Notices or other correspondence from any 
governmental agency relating to past or current 
violations of environmental laws with respect to the 
property or relating to environmental liens 
encumbering the property 

 
� Registrations for underground injection systems 
 
� Environmental permits/plans, solid waste permits, 

hazardous waste disposal permits, wastewater 
permits, NPDES permits, underground injection 
permits, SPCC plans 

 
 
 
 ______________________________________    
 Name (Authorized Client Representative) 
 
 ___________________________________  
Title 

 
 ___________________________________  
Signature 

 
 ___________________________________  
Date 

  



 

Page 1 of 2             Rev. 8-12 

Reference Number: PE1130348  
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

This AGREEMENT is between City of Vestavia Hills, AL (“Client”) and Terracon Consultants, Inc. (“Consultant”) for Services to be provided by Consultant 
for Client on the 1034 Montgomery Highway project (“Project”), as described in the Project Information section of Consultant’s Proposal dated 05/24/2013 
(“Proposal”) unless the Project is otherwise described in Exhibit A to this Agreement (which section or Exhibit is incorporated into this Agreement). 
1. Scope of Services. The scope of Consultant’s services is described in the Scope of Services section of the Proposal (“Services”), unless Services 

are otherwise described in Exhibit B to this Agreement (which section or exhibit is incorporated into this Agreement). Portions of the Services may be 
subcontracted. Consultant’s Services do not include the investigation or detection of, nor do recommendations in Consultant’s reports address the 
presence or prevention of biological pollutants (e.g., mold, fungi, bacteria, viruses, or their byproducts) or occupant safety issues, such as vulnerability 
to natural disasters, terrorism, or violence. If Services include purchase of software, Client will execute a separate software license agreement. 
Consultant’s findings, opinions, and recommendations are based solely upon data and information obtained by and furnished to Consultant at the time 
of the Services. 

2. Acceptance/ Termination. Client agrees that execution of this Agreement is a material element of the consideration Consultant requires to 
execute the Services, and if Services are initiated by Consultant prior to execution of this Agreement as an accommodation for Client at Client’s 
request, both parties shall consider that commencement of Services constitutes formal acceptance of all terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
Additional terms and conditions may be added or changed only by written amendment to this Agreement signed by both parties. In the event Client 
uses a purchase order or other form to administer this Agreement, the use of such form shall be for convenience purposes only and any additional or 
conflicting terms it contains are stricken. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without prior written consent of the other party.  Either 
party may terminate this Agreement or the Services upon written notice to the other. In such case, Consultant shall be paid costs incurred and fees 
earned to the date of termination plus reasonable costs of closing the project. 

3. Change Orders. Client may request changes to the scope of Services by altering or adding to the Services to be performed. If Client so requests, 
Consultant will return to Client a statement (or supplemental proposal) of the change setting forth an adjustment to the Services and fees for the 
requested changes. Following Client’s review, Client shall provide written acceptance. If Client does not follow these procedures, but instead directs, 
authorizes, or permits Consultant to perform changed or additional work, the Services are changed accordingly and Consultant will be paid for this work 
according to the fees stated or its current fee schedule. If project conditions change materially from those observed at the site or described to 
Consultant at the time of proposal, Consultant is entitled to a change order equitably adjusting its Services and fee.  

4. Compensation and Terms of Payment. Client shall pay compensation for the Services performed at the fees stated in the Compensation 
section of the Proposal unless fees are otherwise stated in Exhibit C to this Agreement (which section or Exhibit is incorporated into this Agreement). If 
not stated in either, fees will be according to Consultant’s current fee schedule. Fee schedules are valid for the calendar year in which they are issued. 
Fees do not include sales tax.  Client will pay applicable sales tax as required by law. Consultant may invoice Client at least monthly and payment is 
due upon receipt of invoice. Client shall notify Consultant in writing, at the address below, within 15 days of the date of the invoice if Client objects to 
any portion of the charges on the invoice, and shall promptly pay the undisputed portion. Client shall pay a finance fee of 1.5% per month, but not 
exceeding the maximum rate allowed by law, for all unpaid amounts 30 days or older. Client agrees to pay all collection-related costs that Consultant 
incurs, including attorney fees. Consultant may suspend Services for lack of timely payment. It is the responsibility of Client to determine whether 
federal, state, or local prevailing wage requirements apply and to notify Consultant if prevailing wages apply.  If it is later determined that prevailing 
wages apply, and Consultant was not previously notified by Client, Client agrees to pay the prevailing wage from that point forward, as well as a 
retroactive payment adjustment to bring previously paid amounts in line with prevailing wages.  Client also agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless Consultant from any alleged violations made by any governmental agency regulating prevailing wage activity for failing to pay prevailing 
wages, including the payment of any fines or penalties. 

5. Third Party Reliance. This Agreement and the Services provided are for Consultant and Client’s sole benefit and exclusive use with no third party 
beneficiaries intended. Reliance upon the Services and any work product is limited to Client, and is not intended for third parties. For a limited time 
period not to exceed three months from the date of the report, Consultant will issue additional reports to others agreed upon with Client, however Client 
understands that such reliance will not be granted until those parties sign and return Consultant’s reliance agreement and Consultant receives the 
agreed-upon reliance fee. 

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CLIENT AND CONSULTANT HAVE EVALUATED THE RISKS AND REWARDS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS 
PROJECT, INCLUDING CONSULTANT’S FEE RELATIVE TO THE RISKS ASSUMED, AND AGREE TO ALLOCATE CERTAIN OF THE 
ASSOCIATED RISKS.  TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF CONSULTANT (AND ITS 
RELATED CORPORATIONS AND EMPLOYEES) TO CLIENT AND THIRD PARTIES GRANTED RELIANCE IS LIMITED TO THE GREATER OF 
$50,000 OR CONSULTANT'S FEE, FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, OR EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATTORNEY 
AND EXPERT FEES) ARISING OUT OF CONSULTANT’S SERVICES OR THIS AGREEMENT.  UPON WRITTEN REQUEST FROM CLIENT, 
CONSULTANT MAY NEGOTIATE A HIGHER LIMITATION FOR ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATION.  THIS LIMITATION SHALL APPLY 
REGARDLESS OF AVAILABLE PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE, CAUSE(S) OR THE THEORY OF LIABILITY, INCLUDING 
NEGLIGENCE, INDEMNITY, OR OTHER RECOVERY.  THIS LIMITATION SHALL NOT APPLY TO THE EXTENT THE DAMAGE IS PAID UNDER 
CONSULTANT’S COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY POLICY. 

7. Indemnity/Statute of Limitations. Consultant and Client shall indemnify and hold harmless the other and their respective employees from and 
against legal liability for claims, losses, damages, and expenses to the extent such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are legally determined to be 
caused by their negligent acts, errors, or omissions. In the event such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are legally determined to be caused by the 
joint or concurrent negligence of Consultant and Client, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to its own negligence under comparative fault 
principles.   Neither party shall have a duty to defend the other party, and no duty to defend is hereby created by this indemnity provision and such duty 
is explicitly waived under this Agreement.  Causes of action arising out of Consultant’s services or this Agreement regardless of cause(s) or the theory 
of liability, including negligence, indemnity or other recovery shall be deemed to have accrued and the applicable statute of limitations shall commence 
to run not later than the date of Consultant’s substantial completion of services on the project.   

8. Warranty. Consultant will perform the Services in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the 
profession currently practicing under similar conditions in the same locale. EXCEPT FOR THE STANDARD OF CARE PREVIOUSLY STATED, 
CONSULTANT MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR GUARANTEES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, RELATING TO CONSULTANT’S SERVICES AND 
CONSULTANT DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR WARRANTIES IMPOSED BY LAW, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

9. Insurance. Consultant represents that it now carries, and will continue to carry: (i) workers’ compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of 
the states having jurisdiction over Consultant’s employees who are engaged in the Services, and employer’s liability insurance ($1,000,000); (ii) 
commercial general liability insurance ($1,000,000 occ / $2,000,000 agg); (iii) automobile liability insurance ($1,000,000 B.I. and P.D. combined single 



































RESOLUTION NUMBER 4458 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR BLEACHERS FOR THE 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND APPROVING THE 
FUNDING FOR SIX SETS OF BLEACHERS 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills invited bids for bleachers for the Parks and 

Recreation Department; and 

WHEREAS, bids were received on May 21, 2013 and read aloud publicly with the 

results tabulated and detailed in a recap, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution Number 

4458; and 

WHEREAS, a memorandum dated May 24, 2013 to City Manager Jim St. John from 

Brian Davis, Public Services Director, recommended the acceptance of Outdoor Aluminum 

company and requested additional funding in order to purchase and install six (6) sets of 

bleachers; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree it is in the best public interest to accept 

said bid and authorize the City Manager to expend a total of $22,002 for purchase and 

installation of six (6) sets of bleachers as detailed in the attached memorandum. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Outdoor Aluminum in the amount of $3,667 each 

(including installation) is hereby accepted; and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend $1,002.00 over the budgeted amount of 

$21,000 in order to purchase and install six (6) bleachers; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4458 shall become effective upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of June, 2013. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



BID SUMMARY 
BID-2013-07

BID:   Bleachers 

BID OPENED: May 21, 2013  
   2:00 PM 

PEOPLE PRESENT FOR BID OPENING 
1. Batt. Chf. James P. Barnes, VHFD 
2. Batt. Chf. Terry E. Ray, VHFD 
3. Dep. Chf. Lynn Bonner, VHFD 
4. Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
5. Melissa N. Hipp, Accounting Assistant II 
6. Chief James R. St. John, VHFD 
7. Rita C. Hosmer, Accountant 
8. John Wilson, NAFECO 

BIDDERS:
1.  BSN Sports* $3,046.27 
2. Outdoor Aluminum, Inc. $3,667.00 
3. Lanier Plans, Inc., DBA Korkat $4,102.58 
4. Bliss Products and Services, Inc. $4,792.00 
5. Southern Bleacher Co., Inc. $5,210.00 
6. Giffen Recreation No bid 

 *BSN Sports bid did not include installation, which was 
requested in the invitation to bid. 

Exhibit A





RESOLUTION NUMBER 4459 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE REGIONAL PLANNING 
COMMISSION OF GREATER BIRMINGHAM FOR DEVELOPMENT 
OF A FORM-BASED ZONING CLASSIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement 

with the Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham (“RPCGB”) to accept a 

Building Communities Grant for the project entitled “US Form-Based Code Plan” in an 

amount not to exceed $104,026.84 with a local match of twenty (20) percent or 

$20,805.37; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is attached to this Resolution Number 4459 marked as “Exhibit 

A” and incorporated as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4459 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of June, 2013. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 







Exhibit A


















	Agenda

	May 16, 2013 Minutes

	May; 29, 2013 Minutes

	Resolution 4454

	Ordinance 2448

	Resolution 4456

	Resolution 4457

	Resolution 4460

	Resolution 4461

	Resolution 4458

	Resolution 4459


	Text1: 


